
UNITED NATIONS 1776th meeting 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL Wednesday, 7 July 1971 

&t 10.35 a.m. FIFTY-FIRST SESSION 

OFFICIAL RECORDS P ALAIS DES NATIONS, GENEVA 

------------------------,--------------·-----------------------------------·--
CONTENTS 

Agenda item 2: 
Gt.mcral dis~:ussion of intcrnathmal economic and soda! 

policy (continued): 

Speakers: 

Page 

Mr. Jenks <ILOl • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . 21 
Mr. Fruzao (Brazil) . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 
Mr. Bush (United States of America) . . . . • • . . . . . • . 25 
Mr. Vratusa {Yugoslavia) . . . . . • . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . 26 
Mr. Thajeb (Indonesia) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • • . . . . . . 27 
Mr. Panikkar <WI·TU} . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . 29 

Prt!sidellt: Mr. DRISS <Tunisia) 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

General discussion of international economic and social 
policy ( continu(!d) (E/4942, E/4984, chap. III; E/5004, 
E/5005, E/5007, E/5009, E/5010, E/5016, E/C.2/726) 

1. Mr. JENKS (Director-General. International Labour 
Cffice) said that in the Second United Nations Devel· 
opment Decade the ILO intended to play a full part in the 
larger trxsk of the entire United Ntttions system and to give 
its contributit:n to that task the distinctive character whid: 
reflected the ILO's unique tripartite stru(!ture. The ILO 
believed that the quality of achievement in tht.: Second 
United Nations Developm~nt Decade would depend largely 
on its emphasis on the social purpose of development. 
2. The ILO's political and financial problems had at· 
tracted some attention. They would in due course be 
solved, but in the meantime they would in no circum
stances be allowed to cripple its activities. A typically 
suc(!essful session (the fifty-sixth) of the International 
Labour Conference had rounded off a year of successful 
meetings. all producing useful results with unanimity or 
ncar-unanimity on most issues. A comprehensive series of 
surveys had been initiated to reappraise, in the light of 
changing needs, the ILO's activities in such fields as 
conditions of work, occupational heal'.h and safety, social 
security, management development and workers' education. 
The 1972 Conference would deal with the vast problem of 
child labour in the developing world and the effects of 
containerization on dock labour. Over the next two years, 
work would be done on such subjects as community 
interest in labour-management relations. the treatment of 
foreign workers. education leave (in collaboration with 
liNES CO), occupational cancer (in collaboration with 
WHO). and the labour relations of multinational corpor
ations. taking into account the work being done by OFCD. 

21 

International labour standards were being accepted by an 
increasing number of countries; the ILO was vigorously 
pursuing its efforts to protect human rights; its operational 
programme continued to expand. There was no crisis in the 
ILO itself; its roots ran deep into the changing realities of 
the contemporary world, wherein lay the promise and 
certainty of its continuing vitality. 

3. The more coherent and purposive plannin~ which was 
to be the essence of Ute International Development 
Strategy for the Second United Nations Development 
Decade and of the restructuring of UNDP on the basis of 
country programming presupposed the development of 
common or compatible information systems for the United 
Nations as a whole. The more voluminous and varied the 
information, the more necessary was rational and effective 
use of the latest information-processing techniques. 
Efficiency and economy in the use of electronic data
processing by international organizations had therefore 
become a key managerial responsibility in the planning of 
the Second Development Decade. The ILO was taking steps 
to discharge that responsibility and was co-operating fully 
with the Inter-Organization Board for information systems 
and related activities. While maintaining a computer within 
the medium range, the ILO would not install a Ja~ge-size 
computer, ~:ven tf the volume and complexity of th.: w0rk 
increased beyond the capacity of its facilities, but would 
take full advantage of the facilities offered by the Inter
naUonal Computing Centr~. 
4. The broader p.oblem of the relationship of data
processing to pers\mai freedom and privacy had been raised 
at the fifty-sixth session of the International Labour 
Conference in connexion with the transfer of personal 
information furnished to e!11ployers to computerized data 
bank systems. Such issues could not be neglected. A 
development strategy which underestimated human free
dom or belittled the importance of the ecological context 
of human life sacrificed the purpose of development to the 
modalities of attaining it. 

S. A more immediate issue was the relationship of trade, 
employment and labour standards. At the fifty-sixth session 
of the International Labour Conference the ILO had been 
urged by developing countries to launch a campaign to 
secure general recognition of the fac.:t that the radical 
solution for the employment problem in those countries lay 
in a new system of truly international trade. At the 
conclusion of the Conference, its President had responded 
to that appeal by agreeing that it was the ILO's responsi
bility to voh!e the need for measures that would provide a 
solid ecmwmic foundation for social justice. That state
ment had ref1ected the general mood of the Conference 
which had unanimously adopted a resolution concerning 
the relations between international trade and employment 

E/SR.1776 



22 Economic and Social Council - Fifty-first session 

requesting the International Labour Office to carry out a 
study on the relationship between the principles, standards 
and practices of internathmal trade and the World Employ
ment Programme, and to contact the appropriate organs 
and bodies. United Nations bodies as well as GATT, to 
ensure that full consideration was given to the effects of 
economic development and trade during the Second Devel· 
opment Decade on employment, wages and living con· 
ditions. The question of trade, aid, employment and labour 
had been included in the agenda of the next session of the 
ILO's Governing Body, to be held in November. He had 
alre.ldy initiated consultations on the subject with the 
Secretary-General of the United Nations, the Secretary
General of UNCTAD, the Director-General of GATT and 
the Secretary-General of OECD, with a view ti..; working out 
an agreed basis on which the ILO could usefully co-operate 
\vith the other organizations. In the complex problem of 
development, of whkh trade, aid, employment and labour 
were inseparable elements, the ILO had responsibilities to 
developing and indhstrialized countries alike. 
6. During the 1960s unemployment in the developing 
countries had grown at an alarming rate, in contrast with 
the encouraging performance of many of those countries in 
terms of GNP growth. In many developing countries open 
unemployment represented 10, 12 or 1 S per cent of the 
labour force, to which could be added widespread under
employment not shown by statistics. Much of the unem· 
ployment was concentrated among young people, who 
entered the employment market in ever-increasing numbers 
as a result of the rapid rates of population growth. The 
disappointment of the high expectations fostered in them 
by improved education led them to question the foun
dations of a society which offered them so little chance of 
fulfilment. Moreover, graduate unemployment was 
spreading from the developing world to the mcst advanced 
countries. There was no prospect of world order 011 so 
precarious a basis. 

7. It was now generally agreed that a balanced approach 
to the problem of unemployment and underemployment 
involved action along three major lines: a more efficient 
labour force, increased demand for the products of labour· 
intensive agricultmc and industry, and the careful :;crutiny 
of each sector of th1.• national economy to test the 
possibility and !~mitations of using more labour-intensive 
processes withoul undue ioss of efficiency or profitability 
within the con text of higher rates of economic growth. 
Effective action along those lines presupposed acceptance 
of the level of employment as a major goal and criterion of 
cieneral economic policy. Completing its first review of 
progress in the World Emplnyment Programme, the Inter
national Labour Conference at its fifty-sixth session had 
called on developing countries to ~>rient all aspects of their 
development policy towards full employment and to trtke 
the necessary measures to overcome such obstacles to 
employment-oriented development policies as might exist 
within the structure of their economy und society. The 
primary responsibility clearly rested with each country, but 
the international community cot iU stimulate, guide and 
buttress national effort. The progress made towards 
achieving the employment objective of the International 

Development Strategy could be periodir.ally examined 
within the framework of the regular progress reviews of the 
Second Development Decade. The International Labour 
Conference had stressed that the national, regional and 
over-all appraisals of progress advocated in the International 
Development Strategy should provide a basis for modifi· 
cations in existing policies wherever necessary in order to 
achieve greater employment. Ile hoped that the Council 
would endorse the proposal of the Committee on Devel
opment Planning to include an item on employment 
policies in the agenda of its eighth session and would accept 
his invitation to hold that session nt the International 
Labour Office (see E/4990, paras. I :!R-130 ). 
R To overcome the difficulties raised by the luck of 
reliable current statistics on the size, composition and 
deployment of the labour force in most developing coun
tries, provision was made in the World Employment 
Programme for research aimed at refining the quality of 
employment indicators and for an analysis of the impact on 
employment of the major clements of economic and social 
policy, including fiscal, population and education pro
grammes. Research was also being undertaken on the 
employment potential of the major economic sectors and 
of specific projects. Such research would lead to a better 
understanding of the nature of unemployment, which 
affected different groups of the labour force in different 
ways~ and would help towards the formulation and appli
cation of preventive or rP.medial measures. No task ever 
undertaken by the ILO had called for so much co-operation 
with the rest of the United Nations system and with 
agencies administering btlatcral programmes in that field. 
That co-operation had been generously given within and 
outside the United Nations system. The ILO attached great 
importance to deploying its limited resources in the context 
of such broad co-operation. 
9. The International Labour Conference had expressed 
concern at the frequent incompatibility of de,·elopment 
plans with practical needs and possibilities and had empha
sized the desirability of associa~ing employers and workers 
more fully with development planning g~nerally and with 
the operational work of the ILO in particular. It was the 
common experience of nations in every stage of economic 
development and of every type of political, economic and 
social structure that national development policies and 
plans failed unless there was an adequate response from the 
productive forces of the community. The only way to enlist 
the support of the community was to give it an active part 
in the national life and thus a longer range of vision than its 
own immediate interests. Sections of the community with 
special interests then became aware of wider responsibilities 
and deduced the general interest from a realistic balance of 
practical needs and possibilities rather than from a master 
plan. The tripartite structure of the ILO was particularly 
relevant in the preseat circumstances. 
10. Economic policy was now recognized as essentially a 
means of achieving social objectives. Trade and aid policies 
or the choice of technology were no longer the exclusive 
province of e~onomists and engineers; they involved social 
judgements, which were no less vital for economic growth 
than for political stability~ because economic growth would 



1776th meeting- 7 July 1971 23 
.. ~~·~~ ~"""~~=·~~. ·••~·~··n·~•== ···c~·~ccr~~~·-· =~~ "~~ --.. •·-••• .~.,,~,·~~~·~••·••"'"'"'"~~~~~·· ~-~•-••••• ••~•••"··--

cease unless it satisfied social claims und their political 
expression. Responsible innovation in the present-day 
world involved the constant reappraisal \)f development 
strategies; it could call for far-reaching reforms in the 
economy and structure of society which presupposed or 
precipitated radical changes in the balance of political 
power, it could raise the question of the relationship 
between policy options in respect of which the choice of 
each country must be decisive and those in which the whole 
world rlUst claim a voice. 

11. The United Nations system had no more exacting task 
than that of developing a responsible approach to those 
gr!lve problems. To allow new inequalities to superimpose 
themselves on old ones by giving the rich new opportunities 
to become richer while the poor remained poor or became 
poorer, in relative and sometimes in absolute terms, was no 
mt>re defensible as national policy than as the basis for 
international economic relations. A much greater gross 
world product with a much wider incidence of unemploy· 
ment, underemployment ~tnd misemp10yment and a much 
more uneven distribution of income among and within 
nations wouid not fulfil but would destroy human freedom. 
That \Vas the largest issue at the beginning of the Second 
Development Decade. The United Nations system must 
have the vision and courage to survive the threat of 
disintegration of mankind's common heritage by lawless· 
ness and violence, hy loss of momentum, by loss of 
humanity and by loss of faith in man and his future. If the 
United Nations abdicated the moral leadership of mankind, 
mankind was lost. If free man renounced the moral 
leadership of the United Nations, freedom was lost. The 
basic values of civilized scciety human dignity. personal 
freedom, socia]Justice, tolerance and good-neighbourliness 

were not expendable, nor were the rules of civilized 
government, good faith, fair play, equal justice or due 
process of law. 

12. The forms of governmental and institutional arrange
ments in which values and rules were expressed were more 
debatable, but did not ~hereby become readily expendable. 
Only by turning to good account the fleeting opportunities 
of the revulsion against the First and Second World Wars 
had it been possible to create the League of Nations and the 
United Nations. It had taken a century to create the ILO 
and another half-century to build it to its present strength. 
The other major units of the United Nations system were 
the outcome of comparable determination and devotion. 
Much could be improved in those organizations, but a more 
effective world order would not be created by desttoying 
the only conceivable growing point for it. The United 
Nations system would change with the years. but no part of 
it was expendable without grave damage to the whole. The 
world-wide tripartite co-operation of government. manage
ment and labour was not expendable without substituting 
violent disruption for orderly social progress. The United 
Nations could not be united from disrupted nations. What 
was at stake was the determination expressed in the Charter 
"to save succeeding generations from the scourge of warH 
on the basis of "faith in fundamental human rights'' and 
"better standards of life in larger freedom, for all mankind. 

13. Mr PRAZAO (brazil) said that, in his delegation's 
opinion, the Council had not discharged its responsibilities 
under the Charter in a way which would have made it an 
effective instrument for raising living standards and pro· 
mating full employment on a world-wide scale through the 
reform of existing patterns of the division of labour \Uld of 
trade, which we:·e unfavourable to developing countries. It 
had not been prominent among United Nations organs in 
ensuring international economic co-operation or in laying 
the foundations of international economic stability. The 
Council must take account of the realities of the 1970s 
before taking decisions which, if not cautiously and 
objectively conceived, might hinder instead of promoting 
the implementation of policies designed to foster the 
economic development of developing countries and might 
even destroy the effectiveness of the institutional arrange· 
ments for their implementation. The Council's short· 
C('ming~ should be recognized and concerted efforts made 
hl enable it to re-enter the international scene with a riew 
spirit and a new attitude towards the problems which, if 
not solved, would lead to conflicts bred by the dissatis· 
faction of the developing world. 

14. Every successful stt!p towards international co
operation and every innovation in trade and development 
beneficial to the developing countries had been achieved 
outside the Council. It had proved nece5sary to establish 
UNC'TAD, UNIDO and other bodies before progress could 
be made in such fields as preferences, the trausfer of 
technology, commodity agreements and equitable maritime 
freight arrangements. Instead of sponsoring such measures, 
the Council had viewed with resentment and suspicion the 
other bodies established to fill the vacuum it had itself 
created by diverting its attention to marginal issues not of 
fundamental interest to developing countries. Now, in 
accordance with the institutional system of the United 
Nations, much of what had been accomplished outside the 
Council was submitted for its consideration. In his opinion, 
any move al. that stage to assume responsibility for the 
future development of those new features of international 
economic co-operation would be ill-advised. The Council 
was nevertheless entitled to consider them and their 
purpose and to advise the General Assembly on how to 
improve them. 

15. The new bodies had made considerable progress, were 
efficient, had opened up new approaches leading to the 
adoption of the International Development Strategy and 
had generally lived up to the expectations of the developing 
countries. In that new system of technical, sectoral bodies 
the Council had a guiding, but not a jurisdictional, role. It 
could analyse and comment on the work reported through 
it but could not encroach on the constitutional rights of the 
General Assembly. A clear distinction must be made 
between the levels at which te~hnical and political decisions 
could be taken. In the General Assembly there had been 
many examples of the common good prevailing over selfish 
minority interests. 

16. Brazil shared the view that. with its present member
ship, the Council no longer reflected the composition of the 
United Natiuns. In order to deal with world-wide social and 



24 Economic and Social Council - Fifty·first session 

economic problems it had proved nec\}ssary to increase the 
representation in the Council to involve more Member 
States in preparatory work that would subsequently be 
decided upon by the General Asssembly. An example was 
the establishment of the Preparatory Committee for the 
Second United Nations Development Decade. Member 
States which were not members of the Council increasingly 
felt the need to submit, either alone or with others, 
proposals in that body on matters of the utmost interest to 
them. In his delegation's opinion, the question of the 
enlargement of the C'Ntncil was in no way connected with 
the new functions that should be performed by the United 
Nations system as a whole. The enlargement of the Council 
must be considered on its own merits. He was sure that an 
overwhelming majority of Member States would be in 
favour of it, but since the decision was to be by consensus a 
change in the attitude of the Great Powers was needed. It 
was difficult to understand why a decision taken in 1963 
could not be improved upon. Only political reasons, which 
had not yet been dearly stated, could explain the refusal to 
take appropriate action or the attempt to link such action 
with a change of jurisdiction over the new functions m be 
assigned to the United Nations system by restricting the 
freedom of action of other oxganizations in that system 
which were alr(,ady exercising those functions satisfactorily. 
17. In app•wving the adoption of the International Devel· 
opment Strategy at the twenty-fifth session of the General 
Assembly, his delegation had not accepted the Strategy as 
an end in itself but regarded it as a continuous process of 
negotiation designed to remove constraints on development 
and to devise new forms of co-operation. Provision should 
be made for continuous review and reappraisal of the 
measures and objectives adopted and the machinery for 
world-wide review and negotiation should reflect the 
changes desired by all in the international situation. Only 
political detfi'.rmination could prevent the present stagnation 
in power politics from pervading the t1eld of international 
economic relations. Since the General Assembly's adoption 
of the International Development Strategy, which presup
posed the abandonment of protectionist policies and of the 
old patterns of international division of labour and world 
production, there had in fact been a recrudescence of 
protectionist policies. The developing countries could 
expect little from the transfer of technology if the markets 
of developed countries were closed to the goods whose 
manufacture they were seeking to increase by using the new 
technology. 
18. The restrictive commercial policies of the developed 
countries hindered the developing countries from making 
the options that would help to absorb an increased labour 
force, thus endangering the success of the ILO's World 
Employment Programme. Such policies could not be 
reconciled with the concept of the dynamic co-operation 
for development that required a self-:mstained progress in 
the fields of trade, finance and technology. 
19. The increasing disparity between developed and devcl· 
oping countries was largely the result of the widening of the 
technological gap. No methods had yet been devised to 
facilitate the access of developing economies, at low cost. 
to new technologies which would be appropriate to their 

needs. Although the basic theories of a development 
strategy had been formulated more than ten years earlier, 
the international community had so far taken only tenta· 
tive steps towards putting that strategy into effect. It was 
essential that UNCTAD and UNIDO should now be 
transformed mto fully-fledged autonomous agencies which 
could provide the appropriate forum for negotiation and 
implementation of those policies. 
20. Developing countries members of the Economic and 
Social Council had been attempting for the pm~t year to 
make the Council more effective as an active policy-making 
body for the promotion of development and international 
co-operation. lie feared, however, that the so-called 
.. strengthening" of the Council might encourage the trend 
towards a policy of containment. His delegation viewed 
with concern recent developments which might result, 
directly or indirectly, in restriction of the freedom of 
action of the more repre~entative forums of the Organ
ization. In the field of international economic relations, the 
concept of a dynamic development strategy had put 
increasing emphasis on the need for negotiation and 
political decision, for whkh more representative forums 
were indispensable. 
21. The concept of the Council as a preparato1y body for 
the General Assembly had been· superseded by the concept 
of the Council as a governing body for the activities of the 
United Nations in the economic, social and human rights 
fields and as an organ in which the sectoral programmes of 
the specialized agencies and of IAEA should be scrutinized 
from a global point of view. While the Council was well 
fitted to play the role of a tedmical orienting body, its 
small size made it inadequate as a policy-making body to 
supply the Assembly with ready-made recommendations. 
22. 111e adoption of the International Development Strat· 
egy laid new responsibilities upon the General Assembly 
and upon UNCTAD. It was in the fields of trade, finance. 
shipping and transfer of technology that improvements 
were most urgently needed, and each of those fields came 
within the competence of UNCT AD under the direct 
political guidance of the General Assembly. 
23. It was clear that the appraisal of the progress of the 
International Development Strategy and the revision of its 
targets should be confined to those intergovernmental 
bodies which could provide an adequate forum for nego· 
tiations. To confine responsibility for such appraisal to 
bodies of limited representation or merely to secretariats or 
experts would make it an exercise dP.void of political 
impact and incapable of opening up new avenues of 
progress. 
24. Ilis Government attached the greatest importance to 
those considerations, since it was convinced that the success 
or failure of the Second Development Decade would largely 
determine the long·term prospects for peace ami security. 
The strategy for the 1970s was a matter not of choice but 
of necessity. 

25. Brazil had already made considerable progress in 
economic development thanks to its immense natural 
resources, the energy of its people and the vast potential of 
its internal market. The application of technology to 



1776th meeting - 7 July 1971 25 

production methods, the large role played by private 
enterprise, private foreign investments duly controlled, 
combined with fiscal and other reforms, had initiated a 
process of social development in which labour had already 
begun to play a major role in the expansion and capital· 
ization of the economy. The foundations of a democratic 
capitalism controlled by government planning which stimu
lated rather than restricted private initiative were being laid. 
The Brazilian experience might well serve as a guide for 
development planning in many areas of the developing 
world with similar social and political conditions. 

26. He hoped that the Council would understand that his 
remarks were no mNe than an attempt to contribute to a 
timely self-examination that would enable the Council 
better to meet the fundamental needs of the developing 
countries and to carry out its real r!:sponsibilities within the 
United Naticns system. The problems before the Council 
demanded both criticism and action if the Council was n0t 
to be left behind by the rush of events. 

27. Mr. BUSH (United States of America) said that it was 
his delegation's belief that the Economic and Social Council 
was at a turning point in its history. He hoped that it would 
move towards greater effectiveness among the councils of 
the world. 

28. Outlining current economic problems in the United 
States, he recalled that as a result of deflationary measures 
taken in 1970 to counteract excess demand pressures, 
interest rates and unemploym~nt had risen and real output 
had declined. Fortunately, the rise in prices had now 
levelled off to an annual rate of 3.6 per cent for the six 
months ending in April 1971. In mid-1970 the Adminis· 
tration had taken steps to stimulate the economy through 
expansive monetary and fiscal policies, leading to a decline 
in interest rates and an increase in spending. At the same 
time the economies of many other nations had been 
tightening as a result of an inflationary cycle, and an 
unfortunate imbalance had arisen which had led to a major 
shift of short-term capital from the United States to other 
financial centres. Tlms, although inflation was being con
trolled and :he economy was expanding, a major balance
of-payments deficit had been experienced in 1970-1971. 

29. lf the United States were to try to restore its external 
balance unilaterally, it would harm its trading partners. It 
therefore looked to international co-operation to help it in 
its task. It was concerned at the restrictions which some 
industriali::.ed countries maintained on trade and capital 
flow. and at discriminatory agricultural policies, which 
adversely affected the exports and the balance of payments 
not only of the United States but also of other producing 
countries. All countries should work together towards a 
liberal world trading system which would provide equitable 
market opportunities for all. 

30. One of the key issues at the present session was the 
need to strengthen the Economic and Social Council. The 
Council had a vital part to play in improving the capacity of 
multilateral institutions to channel development assistance 
in the Second Development Decade. At the present time 
the Council was undergoing a crisis of confidence and 

urgently required reorganization if it was to perform its 
task effectively. 
31. He hoped that the Council would take early action to 
bring into being a workable system for review and appraisal 
of progress in the Second Development Decade so that the 
United Nations would be ~nabled to keep track of its 
successes and failures. Secondly, better institutional 
arrangements were needed for applying science and tech· 
nology to the world's needs, and his Government thought 
that the best course was to strengthen the Council's 
capabilities by creating a standing expert committee on 
science and technology. A third important need was to 
enlarge the membership of the Council, while ensuring that 
it assumed the role ofleadership and co-ordination assigned 
to it under the Charter and that such enlargement was not 
designed to encourage the enlargement of other bodies of 
the United Nations system. He was not suggesting that the 
Council should agree forthwith on all the detailed steps 
necessary to assert its authority and leadership, but was 
merely urging that at the present session it should give a 
convincing demonstration of its determination w make the 
Council into a strong arm of the General Assembly. 
32. Among the important questions before the Council 
was that of disaster relief. There was no doubt that existing 
arrangeme!' · within the United Nations system for the 
provision L elief should be strengthened. His delegation 
proposed the creation of a new senior post in the United 
Nations Secretariat for an officer to be called the United 
Nations Disa):ter Relief Co-ordinator. That officer would be 
authorized to mobilize, direct and co-ordinate relief activi· 
ties of the \arious organizations of tlte United Nations 
system and would receive, on behalf of the Secretary· 
General, all contribution~ made to the United Nations for 
disaster relief. 
33. A second urgent problem confronting the Council was 
the population explosion. He hoped that more and more 
Member States would support the United Nations Fund for 
Population Activities, which assisted countries working to 
slow down population growth. 
34. A third problem was the human environment. He 
assured the Council that his country would participate in 
the United Nations Conference on the Human Environment 
to be held at Stockholm in 1972 in a spirit of active 
co-operation with all who shared a concem for the 
protection and conservation of natural resources. The 
problems of urbanization, which would also be dealt with 
at that Conference, should be given more attention in the 
United Nations. 
35. Lastly, he urged all members to support the recently 
established United Nations Fund for Drug Abuse Control 
and the movement to amend and strengthen the 1961 
Single Convention on Narcotic Drugs. It was vital for all 
countries, even those which had not been affected by the 
drug problem, to work together to combat it. 
36. He called on members of the Council to tackle 
courageously the issues before it, above all the issue of its 
own organization and work, which affected the whole 
future of the United Nations as a ~ffective instrument of 
economic and social progress. 



26 Economic and Social Council ~ Fifty-first session 

v 

37. Mr. VRATUSA (Yugoslavia) said that the Council had 
reached a stage at which fresh concepts and far-reaching 
action were needed. In face of the manifold changes and 
uncertainties in the wor!d, the international community 
should mobilize all its forces in seeking ways of Gontrolling 
the potentials it had created and placing them at the serviCe 
of mankind. 

38. TI1e International Development Strategy was one of 
the most far-sighted documents in United Nations history. 
The international community would be able to fult11 the 
task expected of it in that world-wide undertaking provided 
it had the necessary political \\till. TI1e General Assembly, 
the Council and all other United Nations organs would 
make their contributions. His delegation attached particular 
importance to· the third session of the United Nations 
Conference on Tnde and Development and to the second 
Ministerial Meeting of the Group of 77 which was to 
prepare for it. 

39. New challenges could not be met by relying on old 
methods and outdated relationships. There was a decided 
trend at the n~·.tional level towards the reaffirmation nf 
man's h•-.,egrity and recognition of the increasing role of all 
men in all sectors of society. In international relations, too, 
it was difficult to lmagine genuine progress without 
increasing democratizr1tion, strict respect for the sover
eignty and independence of States and non-interference in 
the internal affairs of others. 

40. Crises in one part of the world were rapidly trans
mitted to other parts and problems were becoming increas
ingly internationalized, so that universal solutions were 
required. The F< ,:,~d Nations should forestall crises and 
difficulties and \,.;; wait for them to generate new and 
great'.:)r disturbance,;. His delegation was deeply concerned 
about the massive flow of refugees to India from East 
Pakistan and considered that the entire international 
community should take urgent action to assist them. 

41. Social problems, and particularly those of developing 
countries, were a reflection of the general world economic 
situation, the substantial improvement of which was indis
pensable to progress. His delegation recognized at the same 
time that harmonious economic advancement was possible 
only if supported by measures to satisfy requirements in 
such sectors as education, social welfare :.. •• d health. 

42. The instability of the world monetary system and 
growing inflationary pressures introduced uncertainty into 
international economic and trade relations, distorted the 
picture of international trade trends and diminished the 
developing countries' trade prospects for the Second 
Development Decade. The resultant burden might have to 
be shouldered by the developing countries because of the 
higher prices of the industrial products they were obliged to 
import in order to accelerate economic growth and because 
of protectionist tendencies in the developed countries. The 
steps being taken by the advanced countries towards greater 
economic integration might substantially alter present 
world trade relationships and have a further adverse effect 
on the trade of developing countries if they were taken 
without regard for the needs of the world market. The 

developed countries should make every effort to take the 
interests of the developing countries into account. 
43. A further element that d~served attention was the 
increasing tendency of developed countries, while lowering 
tariff barriers to international trade, to set up more 
non-tariff barriers, which largely affected imports from the 
developing countries. 
44. Contemporary practices in world trade hindered the 
internationalization of production and production tech
niques. It was of the utmost importance for such trade to 
become truly a worlll process. The share of developing 
countries in world trade was declining and urgent measures 
were needed to reverse that trend. The trade lag would lead 
to lags in such sectors as production, technological advance 
and communications, would result in the increasing econ
omic dependence of the developing countries on the more 
developed countries and give rise to serious social conflict. 
45. In the light of the foregoing trends, problems of 
financing in the developing countries had become even 
mor~ acute and the target for financial transfers of 1 per 
cent of the GNP of each economically advanced country 
would remain a major concern for them until it had been 
achieved. The problem was not only quantitative but 
qualitative. If official assistance to developing countries 
continued to decline, the burden of their external indebt
edness might not only hamper development but also 
represent a serious setback to world economic relations and 
to prospects of world peace. 
46. Yugoslavia, as a developing country with an economy 
inaeasingly open to the world market, was keenly 
interested in finding solutions at the international level. The 
generalized system of preferences represented an important 
step forward and might offer a basis for solving the problem 
of over-all trade relations between developed and devel
oping countries. His delegation considered, however, tltat 
the system should be improved in the course of its 
implementation, particularly with regard to the raw ma
terial and food sectors, so as to benefit all devclPpinrl 
countries, and particularly the least developed ammw !lit.'nL 

4 7. The Second Development Decade ~houlu also be a 
decade of expanding economic co-operation among the 
developing countries themselves. Those countries had been 
taking various steps in that direction, but if the objective 
was to be reached they would have to be offered improved 
access to markets and various forms of direct assistance, 
including the untying of aid and financial support for 
payments arrangements. 
48. While measures designed to benefit the developing 
countries were being taken within the framework of the 
United Nations, the measures taken by the developed 
countries to promote their mutual relations were largely 
decided upon outside the United Nations and frequently 
had much greater implications for the developing countries 
than those taken in United Nations bodies. If the Council 
was to promote a higher standard of living, full employ
ment and conditions of economic and social progress and 
development, and to solve intemational economic prob
lems, it would probably be in the interests of all concerned 
not to sidestep the United Nations completely in trying to 



1776th meeting- 7 July 1971 27 

solve the world's major economic problems. The Council 
must work to create a feeling of community of interests, 
and that could be achieved only by joint consideration of 
all the problems that affected the interests of all countries. 
49. The Council should adapt itself to new structures, 
both in respect of the tasks to be performed and of the 
number of its members. In his delegation's view, there had 
not been sufficient efforts to render the Council capable of 
continuing to discharge the role entrusted to it by the 
Charter. For example, when the Council came to make 
specific decisions, it would find itself faced with an agenda 
that failed to include many of the important subjects 
emphasized in the general discussion. The Council's auth
ority could not be built up on the basis of generalized 
statements about its role and significance. Furthermore, 
with so small a number of members, it could hardly be 
expected to exercise the authority necessary for taking the 
decisions required of it. 

50. In its reply to the Secretary-General on the question 
of measures to improve the organization of work, his 
Government had stated that the representation in the 
Council was no longer commensurate with the existing 
structure and composition of the United Nations and that it 
would be advisable to review its present membership 
structure and take appropriate action (see E/4986/ Add.4, 
para. 9 ). The Council could not accept a situation in which 
the majority of States Members of the United Nations had 
to wait fifteen years for their turn to be elected to it. 

51. The Council should play a more effective role, within 
the existing institutional network of United Nations organs, 
in reviewing over-all economic and social situations, in 
identifying the major lags and constraints in development, 
in recommending ways and meam for their removal and in 
formulating new policy directions to meet the challenges of 
present world development. It should neither take upon 
itself the solution of problems within the competence of 
other organs nor, by attending merely to marginal issues, 
divest itself of its own rightful importance. It should submit 
the best possible assessments of the world economic 
situation, guide and inspire all other organs working in the 
economic and social sector and ensure that their activities 
were complementary and could help to solve problems of 
world-wide priority. 

52. The Council should take a bolder look into the future 
and offer suggestions for various directions of change and 
for frameworks in which the aspirations of Gociety and the 
individual might be met. It should draw attention to 
problems not yet obvious to all concerned, propose courses 
of action, point out the need for creating new instruments 
of inte•·,lational co-operation and where necessary ensure 
the effective utilization of existing instruments. 

53. The fruitful work of the regional economic com
missions, which were most familiar with the specific 
requirements of Member States, was particularly important 
in that respect. Problems of international co-operation in 
science and technology and problems of the environment 
were of particularly topical interest. The contribution being 
made by ECE to the solution of environmental problems 
deserved attention. There were at least some aspects of 

those problems that could not be dealt with successfully 
except in relation to economic development. 
54. One of the Council's important tasks in reviewing the 
implementation of the recommendations in the Inter
national Development Strategy should be to identify 
shortcomings in the application of recommendations, deter
mine the factors responsible for those shortcomings and 
propose measures for their removal, including the setting up 
of new objectives and the submission of new recommen
dations. The basic review of implementation would be 
carried out at the national level, in the regional economic 
commissions, in UNCTAD, UNIDO and the specialized 
agencies, and it was the responsibility of those bodies, each 
in its own sector, to develop further the specific activities 
of the Second Development Decade. The General As
sembly, through the Council, would conduct the review at 
the global level. It might consider setting up a special body 
to help it in that task. 

55. Mr. THAJEB (Indonesia) said that there had been a 
marked slow-down in the world economy in 1970 which 
had affected the development of both agriculture and 
industry in most regions. The rate of increase in world 
production of goods and services had fallen below 4 per 
cent and, despite the slight improvement in international 
trade, the downward trend in the developing countries' 
share of that trade had persisted. In contrast to the 
increased exports of the developed countries, the rate of 
growth of the developing countries' exports had declined in 
1969-1970 compared with the period 1967-1969, and there 
had been uncertainty with regard to the export prices of 
their products. Moreover, signs of slackening in the econ
omies of some industrialized countries had been reflected in 
the growth rate of the developing countries. 

56. Taking into consideration the relevant economic 
indicators, world economy and trade seemed unlikely to 
grow at the same rate as hitherto. If those trends continued 
to become more pronounced, the demand for commodities 
from the primary producing countries would be more 
seriously impaired and their balance-of-payments positions 
adversely affected. Such a situation might further aggravate 
the unfavourable terms of trade of the developing countries 
as a result of continuing price increases in the industrial 
products they had to import. 
57. The report of the ECAFE Committee on Trade had 
shown that the value of the trade of that region with the 
rest of the world and of trade between the developing and 
developed countries had increased substantially in 1969 but 
that trade among the developing countries of the region had 
deteriorated during the year compared with the period 
1960-1968. 

58. The International Development Strategy provided a 
framework for international co-operation to ensure accel
erated economic and social development in the developing 
countries. While progress had been achieved in many areas, 
agreement had still to be reached in others and a number of 
steps remained to he taken. His delegation considered that 
the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development 
should give priority to those problems at its third session 
and try to reach agreement on action to be taken. 



28 Economic ancJ Social Council c, Fifty·first session 

59. Jlis country had consistently advocnted a world 
pnlky dt~signed to stabilize the prices of primary com· 
mmlities at remunerative and equitable levels and to 
provide greater access to markets in the developed coun
tries. The results so far achieved hml been unsatisfuct~lry 
and agreements ~ll' arr:mgcments for· a number of primmy 
commmlitics were still lacking. The deteriorating exchange 
value of tlwse products Clllnparcd with manufactures had 
been furthct aggravated by the inroads of synthetics. 
60. Since primary commodities still formed the major 
part of the expllrts of many developing countries. it wns 
cssenthtl to ~on~entrate on the search for practh:al armngc· 
ment!'. Developing ~ountries had attached great importance 
to consultation ami co-operation among themselves with a 
view to improving their terms of trade through ~o· 
ordination ~)r their protlu~tion and marketing policies. llis 
countrv's experien~l! in the Assodation of Natural Rubber 
Produ;ing Countries, the Asian Coconut Community aml 
the Pepper Community had slwwn the- value llf su~h an 
approach. 

61. For most devchlping l.'ountries. improved access to 
markets of developed countries was one of the necessary 
conditions for t11st and steady grmvth. Ilis delegation hoped 
that at its third ~cssion the l 1nited Nations Conference on 
Trade and Development would he able to pwmote an 
intemationul programme of a-:tion for tlw further liberal
ization ami expansion of trade in primary comnwtli tics 
from developing countries. 'IIw generalized system of 
preferences should he improved and pursued dynamicully in 
the light of the objectives set fmth in resolution ~1 (ll)nn 
preferential or free entry of exports of m•mufactures and 
semi·manufactures of developing countries tl, the developed 
countries. mlopted by the Cnnferen.:t.' on 2h March ll>(lH 1 • 

It should in P<lrtkular have a wid~r product ~overage in 
favour of the developing countries whose external resources 
would come mainly from the expllrt of primary com· 
modities. Indonesia was prepared to ~o-opcrate in efforts 
for the further improvement of the generalized system of 
preferences, for it was convinced that that would help tht.• 
developing countries to accelerate their rate of growth aml 
avoid the mherse effects of preferential treatment between 
certain advanced mul developing ~ountrics. Some prefer
ences which had been granted for historical reasons had 
become an ana~hronism. It was understandable that his 
countrv and nthcrs should have serious apprchensions 
concer~1ing such preferences and the application of the 
system of assodation to certain dcveloping countries when 
the membership of EFC was enlarged. 
6:!. Another fundamental requirement for the improve· 
ment of world trade and development was tlevclopment 
finance. The minimum target of 1 per cent of the developed 
countries' GNP for aid was still far ft\llll being attained. 
Despite the good will shown by some developed countries. 
the net flow of international aid for development had 
remained static and in real terms had fallen because of 

1 Sl.·~ Proc·c•edtngs of tile United .Vuticms Conj(•rNIC<' 011 '/i'acie 
and De1·e/vpnwnt, Second St•ssion, vol. I and C'orr.l and J and 
Add.l·2, Rl'port and Annexe,,· <tlnitrd Nations puhlkation, Sail'." 
No.: L6H.li.D.14>. anm•\.1. p . .HL 

intlationary and other adverse trends. The composition and 
terms \)f that tlid were also unsatisfm:tory for many 
dcveloping countries. 
b3. Among thc soda! aspects of development, population 
growth, on which the llnitctl Nations and spl.'dalit.ed 
agendes had published some alarming figun.!s, w:1s a matter 
of considerable concern. I lis l'ountry hatl embarked on a 
family planning programme, which had been received 
favoumbly by all sectors of the population, and it was 
hoped that about h million persons would bc involved hy 
the end of 1 <>75. 

64. Integrated sndal planning was important if the 
ultimate objective of improvin~ the well-being of the 
imlividtwl and bringing bcncfits tn all was tll be attained. 
More stress would he given to those aspel·ts in his ~ountry's 
future dcvclopmcnt planning. 
Cl5. His (lovcrnmcnt attached great importancc to 
arrangt.'ments for reviewing and appruising the pwgress 
made in the implementation of the International I>evcl· 
npmcnt Strategy. In its resolution 1 1 X (XXVII) on pcriodk 
pcrfnrnwm.'t.' appraisal at thL' national and rcgional levels 
during the SCClltHI Development Dccad~· (see F /5020, 
part 110, ECAFF had ret.'l)gnited that appraisal of dcvel· 
opment performance of each country was the sole rcsponsi· 
bility of individual countries themselves and hud stated that 
Governments should establish or strengthen tlwir evaluation 
machinerv and whenever neccssarv, seek international 
assistance. ftlr ~hL' purpose. The hask information fm 
intemational appraisal wou!tl of ~ourse come from national 
somces. With reg~1nl to appraisal at the regional level, it had 
been suggested in the resolution that the Commission 
should make use of reports on performance appraisal 
provided by individual ~ountries. llis delegation considered 
that the Council, as the parent body of the regional 
economic commissions. should discuss their respective 
regional reports in plenary meeting. 
hh. I lis delegation recognized the importance uf global 
se~.·toral appraisals to he carried out by individual organ· 
izatilms of the United Nations system. llNCTAD's evalu· 
ation arrangcments were particularly important. llis 
delegation agreed that the global sectoral appraisals should 
follow u policy-oriented approach designed to assist 
(;ovt.•rnments in adopting measun:s to achieve the objectives 
of the Second J)cvelopment I>ecndc. 
(l7. Over-all appraisal should be the culmination anti 
end-result of the appraisals at different levels. Bts del
egation agreed that its purpose should he, not to pronounce 
judgement on the performance of individual t.:ountrics, hut 
to provide a new instrument for consultation and nego
tiation with a view to achieving the ohjel.'tnves of the 
Decade and to broadening the areas of agreement on 
international action for world development. 

Mt With regard to institutional arrangements, while the 
ultimate responsibility for over-all review and appmisal 
should rest with the General Assembly, the Council should 
play a key role in the pro~css, mainly through the 
formulation of conclusions, recommendations and sl1edfk 
proposals for consideration and action by the General 
Assembly. 



l776th meeting · 7 July 1971 29 

69. The Committee for Development Planning had an 
important part to play in the system of ovcr·ull uppraisal, in 
accordance with paragraph H3 of the Strategy. llis del· 
cgation agreed that an expansion in the size of the 
Committee was desirable to enable it to dis~hargc its new 
responsibility together with its other tusks. It also ap;t·ccd 
with the comments and rc~ommendations made by the 
Committee at its seventh session ~uncerning over-all review 
and appraisal (sec E/4990, ~hap. I). 

70. To assist the (;cneral Assembly and the Council in 
their task of over-all appraisal, the Sc~retary-General should 
submit appropriate documentation and reports that woulll 
facilitate decision-making. 

71. The Secretary-General had, in his statement to the 
Council at its 1773rd meeting. rightly reminded the Council 
thut, together with the <Jcneral Assembly and the Secmity 
Coundl, it was one of the few organs to consider the world 
as a whole und as a single system. Recent discussions on 
ml!asures to improve the organi:t.ation of the Council's work 
had demonstrated the need for reafnrming its central role 
in the economic, s~ll.:ial and human rights sectors. The 
proliferation of agencies during the past two decades, 
coupled with the emergence of centrally financed pro
grammes beyond the C'oundl's control, had threatened to 
rcdw.:c its role to that of a mere co-ordinator of economk 
and social activities within the system. It was important to 
cmphasite the Council's function as a forum for discussion 
and formulation of broad economic and social policies ;Hld 
as a governing body for activities of the United Nations in 
those sectors. The need to balunce the policy-making and 
co-ordinating functions of the Council should always be 
kept in mind. While action to unify a programme of global 
economic and social progress through co-ordinated ac
tivities should not be neglected, the policies of the 
programmes and the means to implement them were also a 
crucial responsibility of the Council. His delegation hoped 
that the Council wuuld not miss the ~>pportunity of putting 
into action some of the proposais made at the fiftieth 
session with regard both to short-term measures of a 
proeeduml and otgani1.ational nature and to long-term 
measures of a struetural character, in which connexion he 
had particularly in mind measures to achieve a pmper 
equilibrium and a rational division of labour between the 
General Assembly and the Council. The question of the size 
and membership of the Council and its Committees should 
also be tackled with renewed dcterminution. It was the 
Council's task to consolidate the constn11.:tive suggestions 
und comments which had been made and to determine the 
direction of its future ·.vork. 

7 2. The over-all performance of the Indonesian e~onomy 
during the period 1 9M~-Jl>70 had shown a satisfactory rate 
of growth, despite many diftkulties. Emphasis had been 
laid on consolidation, both in the main thrust of economic 
policy anti in the relatively modest three-year targets of the 
fiw-yt'ar development plan. lntlatinn, which had reached a 
rate of <1SO per cent in I 9Nl, hall been kept under t.'ontrol. 
having fallen to 10 per ~en t in I t>(lQ and to H.H per cent in 
1 <>70. The outlook for exports was parti~ularly encouraging 
in key sectors such as mining and forestry. On the other 

hand, there had been a deterioration in world prices for 
certain primury commodities, parti~ularly rubber. 

7 3. Increasing ~on f1detll..'l.' in ecmwmk stahili ty had led to 
measures to establish polky guidl•lines with a view to 
stimulating production and expanding et•onomic devel
opment activities through the mobilization of domestic 
social and economic resoun:es. Ref\H'Ill tlf the fmcign 
exdmngc system had been ~ompleted in Del.'cmher 1970, 
when a uniform mte for both aid and general foreign 
exchange had bt•cn estahlisht.•d. 
74. The year 1970 had thus witnessed a successful 
implementation of the five .. year development plan, and 
general prospects for the economy for the next ft.'W years 
were encouraging. 

75. The PRFSIDENT said that the Council Committee on 
Non-Govcrnment:tl Organizations had agreed the previous 
day to re~onunend to the Council that. in accordance with 
rule H6 of the rules of prol'edme, twn-gnvernmcntal 
organizations in category l wishing to make statements to 
the Council on agenda itl'm 2 should be permitted to do so. 
I le al'conlingly suggested that the Coundl should allow the 
International Confederation of Free Trade llnions. the 
Women's International Democratic Federation, the World 
Confederation of Labour and the World Federation of 
Trude Unions to make statements. 

1 t was so d ccid ed. 

7h. Mr. PANIKKAR (World Federation of Trade l lnions), 
speaking at the invitation of the President. said that in April 
of that year the Bureau of WFTl' had adopted a resolution 
deploring the increasing burdens laid on workers by 
monopolist exploitation. aggravated by State interference 
on behalf of the monopolies by su~h methods as increased 
taxation, at ta~ks on social se~urity, wage freezes and so 
forth. WFTll reiterated its request thut. in the interests of 
broader international development and co-operation, the 
Council should undertake a study of the impal't of the 
operations of multinational undertakings on c.:onomk and 
social devclnpmen t. 
77. lie wekomed the decision of the Se~retariat to review 
the results of the First llnited Nations Development Decade 
and to identify the main directions in which development 
should pro~ccd. The H'c>rlcl Hcc momic Surl'<:~·. 1 C)(, CJ-1 C) 70 
( F/4()42), showed dearly that during the I t)(l()s there had 
been almost no apprl.'dahlc rise in the level of living in most 
developing countries. That meant that even the limited 
economic development was not retlc~tcd in any improve· 
ment of the c~onomic and sodal ~onditions of the mass of 
the people and showed that a firm policy for equitable 
in~omc distribution was vital. There could be little incen
tive to popular participation in the implementation of 
development plans when inequalities of wealth were on the 
in~rease and were giving rise to social discontent. 

7H. While the .)'un'('.l' devoted considerable space to the 
inflow of foreign capital to the developing countries, it paid 
s~unt attention to the outflow of i·esout·ccs and skills from 
those countries, without whkh the picture of the situation 
was distorted. Fmplnyment was another acute problem: the 



30 Economic and Social Council ~ Fifty-first session 

under-utilization of the lahnur for~e amounted to some .30 
per cent of the total. In that connexion the Council should 
recommend closer inter-agency co-operation in order to 
achieve speedy implementation of the ILO's World Employ
ment Programme. In addition, the industrial sector in the 
developing countries should be expanded. Scarce capital 
and skills should be put to rational use through the rapid 
expansiun of the puhlk sector and nationalization of key 
for~ign enterprises. Special attention shouid be given tl' the 
needs of depressed areas, nut only in the developing but 
also in the developed countries. In that connexion, he drew 
particular attention to the horrifying events in Bangia Desh. 
where hundreds of thousands of people were mercilessly 
massacred and millions fon:ed to tlee as refugees for the 
simple reason that they dared to demand that e~onomic 
and social development should impart m<.!aning to their 
distinct socio-cultural entity. lie also drew attention to th.! 
achievements of the trade unions in the socialist countries 
in attaining full employment and participation in manage
ment. Valuable lessons could he drawn from those achieve· 
ments. 

79. 'fl1e International Development Strat~gy had ad· 
equately recognized the importance of basic structural 
changes such as land reforms in the developing countries. 
changes in the pattern of international trade and a more 

• equitable division of labour. What was needed now was the 
effective implementation of such measures both nationally 
and internationally. A periodic review and appraisal of 
objectives and policies was essential. not merely as a routine 

bureaucratic process, hut as a broader operation with the 
full participation of representatives of mass organizations, 
particularly the trade unions. He endorsed the suggestions 
in the Secretary-General's report on ~~ system of over-all 
review and appraisal of pwgress in implementing the 
International Development Strategy for the Second llnited 
Nations Development Decade that the Council slan1ld 
devote its summer session during the appraisal year solely 
to review and appraisal (sec E/5040, para. 35 ), During that 
review, attention should he paid to the need to safeguard 
tradc·union rights and dvil liberties, to enable the trade 
unions to defend effe~tively the interests of the working 
people and to make their fullest contribution to economic 
and socinl development. 
HO. lie endorsed the statement by the Secretary-General 
( 177.3rd meeting) regarding the grent contribution that the 
Council could make towards rectifying the distorted pri· 
orities which entailed huge sums, that could improve the 
prosperity of developing countries, being spent on anna· 
ments. 
H 1. In conclusion, he deplored the discriminatory attitude 
shown by the United Nations towards the People's Repub· 
lie nf China, the German Democratic Republic, the Korean 
People's Democratic Republic and the Democratic Republic 
of Viet-Nam, an attitude which could unly disrupt the 
international en-operation so essential for the world's 
economic and social development. 

The meeting rose at 1..::!0 p.m. 




